# 立法會 Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(2)1575/17-18

(These minutes have been seen by the Administration)

Ref : CB2/PS/3/16

## Panel on Food Safety and Environmental Hygiene

Subcommittee on Issues Relating to Public Markets

## Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 10 April 2018, at 10:45 am in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex

<b>Members</b> present	: Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH (Chairman) Hon HO Kai-ming (Deputy Chairman) Hon LEUNG Yiu-chung Hon Claudia MO Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS Hon CHAN Han-pan, JP Hon LEUNG Che-cheung, SBS, MH, JP Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, JP Hon Andrew WAN Siu-kin Hon CHU Hoi-dick Hon SHIU Ka-fai Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH Hon Jeremy TAM Man-ho Hon AU Nok-hin
Member attending	: Hon WU Chi-wai, MH
Members absent	: Hon KWOK Wai-keung, JP Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan Dr Hon Elizabeth QUAT, BBS, JP Hon SHIU Ka-chun Hon YUNG Hoi-yan

Public Officers	:	<u>Item I</u>
attending		Dr CHUI Tak-yi, JP Under Secretary for Food & Health Food and Health Bureau
		Miss Diane WONG Shuk-han Principal Assistant Secretary for Food and Health (Food) 2 Food and Health Bureau
		Mr David WONG Fuk-loi Deputy Director (Administration & Development) Food and Environmental Hygiene Department
		Mr Damian CHAN Kwok-wai Assistant Director (Market Special Duties) Food and Environmental Hygiene Department
		Mr Edward TSE Cheong-wo Project Director 3 Architectural Services Department
		Mr Tony LEE Cheuk-ming Chief Project Manager 301 Architectural Services Department
Clerk in attendance	:	Ms Alice LEUNG Chief Council Secretary (2) 6
Staff in attendance	:	Miss Connie AU Senior Council Secretary (2) 8
		Mr Clement HAU Council Secretary (2) 6
		Miss Meisy KWOK Legislative Assistant (2) 6

## I. Market Modernization Programme

(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)1011/17-18(01), CB(2)1139/17-18(01) and CB(2)1023/17-18(01))

<u>The Subcommittee</u> deliberated (index of proceedings attached at Annex).

2. At the invitation of the Chairman, <u>Under Secretary for Food & Health</u> briefed members on the \$2 billion Market Modernization Programme ("MMP") for improving the operating environment of existing public markets managed by the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department ("FEHD") in a 10-year period (LC Paper No. CB(2)1011/17-18(01)).

Admin 3. <u>The Subcommittee</u> requested the Administration to provide information or advise on the following:

- (a) the progress of and the anticipated dates of commencement and completion for building new public markets in Tung Chung, Tin Shui Wai and Hung Shui Kiu;
- (b) various processes involved in and the average time required for retrofitting an air-conditioning ("A/C") system in a public market (including, for example, conducting tender exercise, seeking funding approval, and carrying out different stages of retrofitting works) after crossing the 80% threshold of tenants' support for such works;
- (c) the existing compensation arrangements for stall tenants who were affected by the retrofitting works of A/C systems, and had to be relocated to other stalls or moved to other public markets to continue their operation or close their businesses eventually;
- (d) the estimated A/C charges of the 99 public markets, assuming that these public markets were all retrofitted with A/C systems and the charges were to be borne by the Government; and
- (e) whether the Administration would consider installing evaporative air coolers or oscillating fans in public markets before A/C systems were installed, and if so, provide a list of public markets with such temporary equipment already installed or planned to be installed.

(*Post meeting note:* The Administration's response was circulated to members vide LC Paper no. CB(2)1573/17-18(01) on 11 June 2018.)

Admin

4. To facilitate further discussion by the Subcommittee on the subject relating to MMP in future meetings, <u>the Subcommittee</u> also requested the Administration to provide information on the initial thinking on the use of the \$2 billion earmarked for implementing MMP, with a rough estimation of the funding to be spent on different types of works (for example, retrofitting of A/C systems, fundamental overhaul of public markets and in-situ redevelopment of public markets, etc.)

(*Post meeting note:* The Administration will brief members on the modus operandi of the Market Modernization Programm at its meeting on 12 June 2018.)

### Motions moved by members

### Motion 1

5. <u>Mr Andrew WAN</u> moved a motion as follows:

市民對公眾街市服務有殷切需求,包括要求改善現有街市 服務及興建新公眾街市,政府預留的20億元的「街市現代 化計劃」及建議興建的新街市數目,明顯未能夠應付現代 社會的需要。為加速街市現代化計劃及增加新公眾街市數 目,本小組委員會促請當局設立「專款專用」機制,並注 入足夠的資本,令政府有充足資源推行以下計劃:

- (1) 諮詢區議會後,選定合適地方興建新公眾街市,包括 將建議興建的社區綜合大樓改為市政綜合大樓,融入 公眾街市設施,以符合一地多用原則;及
- (2) 在未來十年推行街市現代化計劃,支援現有公眾街市的硬件改善工程。

### (Translation)

That, given the keen demand in the society for public market facilities, including demand for improvement to be made to existing market facilities and building new public markets, the \$2 billion that the Government has earmarked for the Market Modernization Programme and the proposed number of new markets to be built are apparently unable to meet the needs of the present day society, and, in order to expedite the Market Modernization Programme and increase the provision of new public markets, this Subcommittee urges the Administration to introduce a "dedicated-funds-for-dedicated-uses" mechanism with injection of adequate capital to provide the Government with sufficient resources to take forward the following initiatives:

- (1) in consultation with the District Councils, identifying suitable sites for building new public markets, including the building of municipal complexes, instead of the proposed community complexes, for incorporating public market facilities in line with the "single site, multiple use" principle; and
- (2) launching a 10-year Market Modernization Programme to support the hardware improvement works for existing public markets.

6. <u>The Chairman</u> decided that the motion was directly related to the agenda item, and <u>members</u> agreed to deal with the motion. <u>The Chairman</u> put the motion to vote. All members present voted in favour of the motion. <u>The Chairman</u> declared that the motion was carried.

## Motion 2

7. <u>Mr Jeremy TAM</u> moved a motion as follows:

為推動街市現代化,在街市空調收費的安排,本小組委員會 認為街市公用地方的空調費用應由政府承擔,不應由街市檔 戶負責繳付。

## (Translation)

That, in order to facilitate market modernization, this Subcommittee is of the view that, regarding the arrangements on air-conditioning charges in markets, the air-conditioning charges attributable to the common areas of markets should be borne by the Government, and not by stall operators of the markets.

#### Action

8. <u>The Chairman</u> decided that the motion was directly related to the agenda item, and <u>members</u> agreed to deal with the motion. <u>The Chairman</u> put the motion to vote. All members present voted in favour of the motion. <u>The Chairman</u> declared that the motion was carried.

(*Post meeting note:* The Administration's response to the above two motions was circulated to members vide LC Paper No. CB(2)1572/17-18(01) on 11 June 2018.)

# II. Any other business

Suggestion for inviting deputations to give views

9. <u>Mr SHIU Ka-fai</u> and <u>Dr CHIANG Lai-wan</u> had expressed similar views that the Subcommittee should invite deputations to give views on issues relating to the improvement works of public markets, in particular, the retrofitting of A/C systems in public markets. <u>The Chairman</u> suggested that the agenda item for inviting deputations to give views should be couched in such a way so that deputations could give their views on issues relating to MMP and the management of public markets. <u>The Chairman</u> also advised that he would discuss with the Administration on the matter, and he and the Clerk would work out the arrangements as appropriate. <u>Members</u> raised no objection.

# Suggestion of visiting public markets

- Clerk 10. <u>Dr CHIANG Lai-wan</u> suggested arranging a visit to public markets managed by FEHD to facilitate members to better understand the operating environment and the hardware improvement works of public markets. She considered that reference could be drawn from the markets in neighbouring places in contemplating the initiatives to improve the operating environment of public markets, adding that if appropriate, consideration might be given to visiting the markets in neighbouring places.
- Clerk 11. <u>The Chairman</u> said that the Secretariat would follow up with the Administration regarding the proposed visit to public markets managed by FEHD.

## Date of next meeting

Clerk 12. <u>Members</u> agreed that the Subcommittee would schedule the next meeting in around mid June 2018.

Action

13. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 12:22 pm.

Council Business Division 2 Legislative Council Secretariat 11 June 2018

# Proceedings of the meeting of the Subcommittee on Issues Relating to Public Markets on Tuesday, 10 April 2018, at 10:45 am in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
Agenda ite	em I – Market Modernizatio	n Programme	-
000708 – 001412	Chairman Admin	Opening remarks The Administration briefed members on the Market Modernization Programme ("MMP"), details of which were set out in the Administration's paper (LC Paper No. CB(2)1011/17-18(01)).	
001413 - 001835	Chairman Mr Andrew WAN Admin	Mr Andrew WAN considered that the current public market policy was unclear and lacking in planning, and expressed concern about the planning standards for market facilities as set down in the prevailing Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines. Pointing out that the installation of an air-conditioning ("A/C") system in Tai Wai Market would cost about \$100 million, Mr WAN questioned whether the \$2 billion allocated for MMP would be sufficient for improving the operating environment of all existing markets under the management of the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department ("FEHD"). The Administration responded that it was committed to addressing the current situation. However, the following factors should be taken into account in reviewing and planning public markets: (a) in the past, many public markets were used to re-site as many on-street hawkers as possible in their limited floor area available and hence many stalls were small in size; (b) over 60% of the markets were built before 1990s; and (c) the difficulty in finding suitable space for building new public markets in the community. The Administration stressed that the \$2 billion earmarked for MMP would facilitate improvement of the operating environment of public markets, and the Food and Health Bureau ("FHB") and FEHD would strive for more resources in this respect when there was a need to do so in future.	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
001836 – 002247	Chairman Deputy Chairman Admin	The Deputy Chairman expressed the following views on the retrofitting works of A/C systems in public markets:	requireu
		<ul> <li>(a) tenants of stalls with less profitable business would be reluctant to support the installation of A/C systems because they could not afford the A/C charges which included electricity charges and general maintenance costs;</li> </ul>	
		<ul><li>(b) the management of public markets should not be considered from a business point of view and the installation of A/C systems was for the benefit of the public; and</li></ul>	
		<ul> <li>(c) the "user-pays" principle should not be adopted in recovering the A/C charges. If the Administration would bear the A/C charges, tenants' support for installing A/C systems in most markets would more likely reach the 80% threshold ("the 80% Threshold"). He hoped that the A/C charges could be funded by the said \$2 billion.</li> </ul>	
		The Administration responded that it was the government policy to adopt the "user-pays" principle in setting fees and charges. As regards the \$2 billion earmarked for MMP, it would serve the functions of improving the hardware of public markets with a view to enhancing their competitiveness. The funding would be spent on public works and capital investment of public markets.	
002248 – 002734	Chairman Mr SHIU Ka-fai Admin	Mr SHIU Ka-fai was concerned about how the \$2 billion funding would be spent. Using the markets of Link Real Estate Investment Trust as an example, Mr SHIU emphasized the importance of installing A/C systems in public markets to attract customers. He agreed with the Deputy Chairman that the Administration should consider shouldering the A/C charges.	
		Mr SHIU reiterated his views expressed at the previous meeting of the Panel on Food Safety and Environmental Hygiene when discussing the proposed retrofitting works of the A/C system of Tai Wai Market, including the provision of a temporary space for tenants to continue doing business during the retrofitting works; shortening	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		the period of retrofitting works; and providing a longer period of waiver of rental and A/C charges. The Administration responded that FEHD would conduct a comprehensive review of existing public markets and formulate specific improvement measures for both the facilities and their management and underlined that under the existing policy, the majority of vacant stalls in public markets under FEHD were let out by auctions and the persons interested in bidding for the market stalls were not required to satisfy any means test.	
002735 - 003208	Chairman Dr CHIANG Lai-wan Admin	DrCHIANGLai-wanenquirediftheAdministration had any estimation on the numberofpublicmarketswhoseimprovementworkswould be funded by the \$2 billionMMP.Shealsoaskedabouttheprogressofthesixrepresentativemarketswhich wereprovided withimprovementproposalsintheconsultancystudycompleted in 2015.TheAdministrationrespondedthatitaimedatmakingfullandoptimaluseofthe\$2billionfunding asassoasasadadmarketimprovementprojectsinthefullandoptimaluseofthesebillionfundingfundingadconsidersesesead	
003209 – 003751	Chairman Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung Admin	Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung was concerned that the tenants in Wing Fong Street Market were not yet consulted by the Administration on the market improvement proposals. He opined that apart	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		from installing A/C systems to improve the environment of public markets, it was equally important to find the right trade mix to improve the vibrancy of public markets. In his view, the Administration should devolve power and adopt a bottom-up approach in tackling matters relating to public markets by consulting the public and stakeholders, instead of simply relying on the consultancy study completed in 2015.	~
		The Administration acknowledged that it was important to communicate with tenants and stakeholders, and the \$2 billion funding would provide flexibility for taking forward improvement projects in an efficient and effective manner. Given that the management of markets was equally important, the Administration would continue to engage the Market Management Consultative Committees ("MMCC") of the markets concerned, which comprised tenant representatives, District Council members, etc.	
003752 – 004458	Chairman Mr AU Nok-hin Admin	<ul> <li>Mr AU Nok-hin expressed the following views and concerns:</li> <li>(a) the tenants of the Aberdeen Market were concerned about the progress of the works of installing A/C systems there as FEHD had not yet provided tenants with an estimated timetable of the retrofitting works and the Architectural Services Department ("ArchSD") had not supplied the feasibility study;</li> <li>(b) in order not to procrastinate the completion schedule of improvement works of Aberdeen Market, it was not desirable for the Administration to provide new improvement options for tenants' consideration when MMCC of a public market had reached a decision on the type of improvement projects to be pursued; and</li> </ul>	
		<ul> <li>(c) with a view to ensuring that the retrofitting works of public markets could proceed in an organized and systematic manner, the Administration should consider formulating a standard set of procedures/a mechanism, or some factors of consideration in deciding what types of hardware improvement</li> </ul>	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		projects of public markets should be taken forward.	requireu
		The Administration advised that it had been proactively discussing with tenants of Aberdeen Market to determine the best way to improve the operation and management of the market, as it was observed that simply installing an A/C system in the market might not help to achieve this goal. Due to historical reasons and physical limitations of Aberdeen Market, some of the stalls were very small in size. The Administration therefore aimed at making use of the \$2 billion funding to improve the hardware and software of the market. While the Aberdeen Market could not be redeveloped as there were public sports facilities built on the floors above the market, the Administration would continue to explore the most suitable solution for improving the market and then consult the relevant District Council ("DC") and stakeholders.	
004459 – 005159	Chairman Mr WU Chi-wai Admin	Taking into account the difference in the nature of business between stalls selling dry goods and wet goods, Mr WU Chi-wai considered that the Administration should adopt different strategies in handling these stalls. He urged FEHD to consider removing the partitions between stalls, as there was usually a single owner/beneficiary behind multiple neighbouring stalls. In his view, by removing the partitions between stalls which were operated by the same tenants, it would improve the operating environment of public markets and save the effort of the Administration in re-zoning the stalls and re-configuring the layout.	
		While acknowledging that the mode of business operation of stalls selling dry goods and wet goods was different, the Administration explained again the historical background and function of public markets in support of hawker management. On members' concerns about the measures to improve the operating environment of stalls in public markets, the Administration responded that it would consider whether it would be feasible to separate stall tenants by the types of good they were selling, and also consider encouraging tenants holding multiple stalls to conduct their business in one single stall. Citing the new Wan Chai Market as an example, the Administration	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		advised that while it was initially estimated that there would be insufficient space to accommodate all stalls moving from the old Wan Chai Market, but at the end the bidding of stalls in the new market had worked out fine, which resulted in a better market environment.	
005200 – 005834	Chairman Mr Jeremy TAM Admin	Mr Jeremy TAM considered that if the Administration agreed to waive the A/C charges, many of the stall tenants would support the installation of A/C systems in public markets. He requested the Administration to provide information on the estimated A/C charges of the 99 public markets, assuming that these public markets were all retrofitted with A/C systems and the charges were to be borne by the Government.	Admin (paragraph 3(d) of the minutes)
		<ul> <li>Noting that several cooked food stalls in Shui Wo Street Market were asked to surrender their stalls to free up space for installing A/C systems, Mr TAM considered that these tenants should be compensated reasonably and requested the Administration to provide details of the existing compensation arrangement for stall tenants affected by the retrofitting works of A/C systems.</li> <li>The Administration responded that tenants might not support installing A/C systems even if the A/C charges were waived, as they would also be concerned about other factors such as whether the markets would be fully closed during the installation. The \$2 billion earmarked for MMP would allow for greater flexibility for discussing possible solutions with the tenants.</li> </ul>	Admin (paragraph 3(c) of the minutes)
		The Administration further explained that many public markets were built a long time ago and had not reserved space for installing A/C systems, so it would be technically difficult to retrofit A/C systems to these markets now. The same situation applied to the Shui Wo Street Market, where it was necessary to relocate some tenants to allow for space to install A/C facilities. The Administration stressed that there were concessionary arrangements in place for the tenants affected by the retrofitting works of A/C systems.	
005835 – 010253	Chairman Mr LAU Kwok-fan Admin	Mr LAU Kwok-fan said that he shared the views of a market hawkers association named "公共街	

市大聯盟" that it was unfair for tenants to pay the

Admin

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		A/C charges of public areas. Concerning the installation of A/C systems, he asked FEHD to consult tenants in order to find out why some markets could not reach the 80% Threshold, and explore whether it was possible to overcome the problems causing some tenants to oppose the installation.	
		According to the Administration, FEHD had all along maintained constant contact with the stall tenants in public markets, and had already conducted a new round of consultation exercise with four public markets. While some markets could still not reach the 80% Threshold, the Administration would continue to communicate with the tenants, and would make use of the \$2 billion funding to tackle the A/C issue and other improvement works of public markets. With the setting up a dedicated team, FEHD would conduct a comprehensive review of the 99 public markets under its management, and would take into consideration the views of stakeholders on the measures to improve and revitalize the facilities of public markets.	
010254 – 011044	Chairman Admin	In response to the Chairman's enquiry on the building of new public markets, the Administration advised that it was identifying a suitable location to build a new market in Tin Shui Wai. As for Tung Chung, the Administration had already earmarked space near the Tung Chung MTR Station for building a market at Tung Chung East, and it would also consider the needs and feasibility of building a market at the town centre of Tung Chung. Concerning the \$2 billion funding, the Administration reiterated that it would be deployed flexibly to cover various types of hardware improvement projects, from minor improvement works to more fundamental overhaul or even in-situ redevelopment based on the circumstances.	
		The Chairman also enquired about whether and what difficulties had been encountered in the installation works of A/C systems in pubic markets. In response, the Administration briefly elaborated on the factors to take into consideration in the installation of A/C systems in public markets, including identifying suitable	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		space for installing electricity supply facilities, the views of tenants and stakeholders, the safety of the building structure, etc. The Administration reassured that ArchSD would consolidate past experience and work with FEHD to discuss feasible solutions with stakeholders and tenants, in order to conduct the works in an efficient manner.	
		<ul><li>The Administration was asked to provide the following information:</li><li>(a) the progress of and the anticipated dates of commencement and completion for building new public markets in Tung Chung, Tin Shui Wai and Hung Shui Kiu; and</li></ul>	Admin (paragraph 3(a) and 3 (b) of the minutes)
		(b) the various processes involved in and the average time required for retrofitting an A/C system in a public market (including, for example, conducting tender exercise, seeking funding approval, and carrying out different stages of retrofitting works) after crossing the 80% Threshold.	
		To facilitate further discussion by the Subcommittee on the subject relating to MMP in future meetings, the Chairman also asked the Administration to provide information on its initial thinking on the use of \$2 billion earmarked for implementing MMP, with a rough estimation of the funding to be spent on different types of works.	Admin (paragraph 4 of the minutes)
011045 - 011802	Chairman Mr Andrew WAN Admin	Pointing out that an additional 1.5 public markets in Tung Chung would still be needed to meet the needs of the population in the area based on the Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines, Mr Andrew WAN commented that the Administration lacked overall planning for public markets and multi-services complexes. He hoped that the Subcommittee would discuss the subject of the Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines in future meetings. He also considered that incorporating public market facilities into municipal complexes would better adhere to the principle of "single site, multiple use", and that to help the public better understand the types of services provided at each public service building, the Administration should	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		standardize the names of these buildings. He wondered whether the Administration had a list of community complexes with market facilities which were planning to be overhauled or would undergo redevelopment.	
		The Administration responded that FEHD did not have a list of community complexes which were being planned for overhaul or redevelopment, as it straddled a number of bureaux and departments. The Administration would focus on the task of improving the operating environment of public markets, and it would review the 99 FEHD markets. The Administration aimed to put the \$2 billion funding into full and optimal use, and would ensure that improvement projects could proceed as soon as possible when the opportunity was ripe.	
011803 – 012207	Chairman Mr AU Nok-hin Admin	Mr AU Nok-hin stressed that the Administration should consider the views of DCs and learn from its past experience in implementing improvement projects of public markets so as to devise feasible solutions for tenants to choose from. He also considered that converting those underused public markets to other uses, such as Shau Kei Wan Market, could be another option in addition to installing A/C systems, overhauling and redevelopment of public markets.	
		The Administration advised that it would consider converting public markets to other uses in some cases, such as the recently closed Shau Kei Wan Market, which had a low occupancy rate in recent years. This would release precious land resources for more gainful use to better serve the community. The Administration further responded that as the situation and improvement needs of each public market would be different, the Administration would avoid introducing improvement measures to all markets in a mechanical way. The Administration would propose improvement measures based on the circumstances of each public market, and would take responsibility in utilizing the \$2 billion funding.	
012208 – 013046	Chairman Mr SHIU Ka-fai Dr CHIANG Lai-wan Admin	Mr SHIU Ka-fai suggested that the Subcommittee should hold a meeting to listen to the views of the public on the subject of retrofitting of A/C systems in public markets.	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required
		Echoing the suggestion of Mr SHIU Ka-fai, Dr CHIANG Lai-wan considered that the Subcommittee should hold a meeting to meet with deputations, as many tenants had expressed concern about the use of the \$2 billion funding. She shared with the Administration the following concerns she learnt from the tenants of different public markets:	-
		<ul> <li>(a) for Hung Hom Market, evaporating air coolers or cooling fans should be provided before the A/C system was installed, and the tenants should not have to bear the A/C charges of public areas;</li> </ul>	
		(b) for Po On Road Market, the air coolers installed were not cold enough, and the water dripping from the ceiling had adversely affected tenants selling wet goods. The cleanliness and hygiene of the toilets in the market should be improved; and	
		<ul><li>(c) for Pei Ho Street Market, the maintenance works should be completed as soon as possible, and the tenants should not be asked to bear the A/C maintenance cost.</li></ul>	
		The Administration responded that it would take the views of members as well as the stakeholders into consideration in improving the operating environment of public markets.	
013047 – 013607	Chairman Mr Andrew WAN Dr CHIANG Lai-wan Admin	Pointing out that the planning of public markets and management of municipal complexes involved policy issues which straddled different policy bureaux, Mr Andrew WAN considered that cross-bureau collaboration was necessary.	
		The Administration responded that when looking into the public market policy, one had to look into the historical development, and the management of public markets involved the effort of different policy bureaux in different eras. As the management of FEHD's markets was under the purview of FHB, it welcomed exchanging views with other bureaux. The Administration would follow up on the matters raised at the meeting today, and provide more information at later meetings as appropriate.	

Time marker	Speaker(s)	Subject(s) / Discussion	Action required	
		Regarding Mr SHIU Ka-fai's and Dr CHIANG Lai-wan's suggestion of inviting deputations to give views on issues relating to the improvement works of public markets, the Chairman suggested that the agenda item for inviting deputations to give views should be couched in such a way that deputations could give their views on issues relating to MMP and the management of public markets. He would discuss the matter with the Administration, and he and the Clerk would work out the arrangements as appropriate. The Chairman requested the Administration to follow up on members' requests raised at the meeting.	Clerk (paragraph 9 of the minutes)	
013608 – 013829	Chairman Dr KWOK Ka-ki Admin	Dr KWOK Ka-ki requested the Administration to provide information on how the \$2 billion funding would be spent. He also urged the Administration to install evaporative air coolers or oscillating fans in public markets with no A/C systems, and requested the Administration to provide a list of public markets with such temporary equipment already installed or planning to be installed.	Admin (paragraph 3(e) and 4 of the minutes)	
013830 - 013901	Chairman Mr Andrew WAN	Moving of motion by Mr Andrew WAN		
013902 – 013934	Chairman Mr Jeremy TAM	Moving of motion by Mr Jeremy TAM		
Agenda ite	Agenda item II – Any other business			
013935 – 014110	Chairman Dr CHIANG Lai-wan	Dr CHIANG Lai-wan's suggestion of arranging a visit to public markets managed by FEHD Members' agreement on the schedule of the next meeting	Clerk (paragraph 10 to 12 of the minutes)	